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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: ... (gavel) . .. Good morning. The meeting of the Public Works and
Facilities Committee will corne to order. This morning, I'd like to introduce the Members that
are--oh, excuse me. (NOTE: Mr. Jensen turned the microphone so the Chair speaks into it.)
Excuse me. The Members that are present. Members that are present is Vice-Chair Danny
Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Morning.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Voting Member; Member, Budget Chair Joe Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Morning.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Also a Voting Member; and myself, Co-Chair Mike Victorino. We have
one Non-Voting Member today at present, Land Use Chair Mike Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Morning, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO:
Thank you.
Thank you for being here.
Chair Hokama and
Vice-Chair [sic} Medeiros are both excused today, and we like to pass our well wishes to
Vice-Chair [sic} Medeiros. I understand he's been under the weather, and I can relate to that.
If you all remember a few weeks ago, I could barely speak. So, I understand some people
thought that was a great idea. Anyhow, moving right along. Also present today, we have our
Corp. Counsel representative Mr. David Galazin.
MR. GALAZIN: Good morning.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO:
Good morning, David.
From the Administration, we have the
Administration representatives, Cheryl Okuma from the Department of Health and--I mean
Department of Environmental Management; and Deidre Tegarden from the Office of
Economic, Office of Economics [sic}, yeah.
(NOTE: Requesting that Administration
representatives sit at the Administration desk.) And if you two would like to come up and take
the chairs up here, I'd appreciate it. Thank you. Our Council Service staff, Pauline Martins,
our Secretary; and our Legislative Analyst Scott Jensen. So thank you for all being here this
morning. Members, today, we just have one item on our agenda. This item will be Item
PWF-68, which is our Plastic Ban Reduction Ordinance, which was introduced by Chair, I
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mean Land Use Chair Molina, and so I'd like to open up. First of all, we'd like to open up to
public testimony. We anticipate much public testimony this morning. Those who wish to
testifY please sign up at the Secretary's desk right here off to my left. Testifiers are requested to
state their name for their record and indicate if they are representing any particular group or
organization. Testifiers will strictly be limited to three minutes to each item. When the yellow
light comes on you only have 30 seconds to conclude. Should you need an additional minute,
that will be allowed; and if after that is done and you wanna come back, you can come back at
the end of all testifiers. At this time, I would like to accept all public testimony for PWF-68.
First of all, I'd like to call on. We have, at this time, three testifiers. First testifier is David
Diven, followed by Mmjorie Bonar. David, if you'd come forward please .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY • ..
MR. DIVEN: Hi, my name is David Diven, and I'm representing myself. As I, I testified in a previous
meeting here, that I hear similar, I read in the newspaper, a similar response from the industry
as I saw in the HI-5 Bottle BilL That cost will be large, benefits will be small and it's a bad
idea. That, the result of the Bottle Bill that I observed was, cost was manageable, the beaches
are clean and the lowest of our economic members of our society have an additional means to
gather money. That, I can't help but wonder if something similar isn't going to happen here.
That, I am strongly in favor of the Bag Ban. That, I can't help but wonder if cottage industries
won't develop on Maui providing bags. That, the residents will probably get their bags fairly
quickly, but we'll have a continuous supply of tourists, all of which '\vill discover when they
arrive at the store, they need to purchase a bag. And who knows what benefits will arrive.
That, I encourage you to encourage me to change. That, I have the best of intentions. I will
recycle. I will do this. I will do that, but I rarely do. That it's--if it's, if I'm not placed in a
position of needing to do something different, I don't do something different. And th.en, well
we don't know what will be the result if, if the ban is passed. That, it at least will be a change.
That, we do know that if we don't make a change, we'll continue with thc same environmental
impact; the same, everything the same. That, if we do make a change, we have a chance that
something will get better. I certainly don't expect the stores to bear the increased cost. That, as
a consumer, I would expect that I would get to the checkout stand and be offered an options of
things to purchase. I can purchase an expensive, environmentally more friendly plastic bag to
take my stuff. I could purchase a paper sack. I could purchase a reusable sack. That, I don't
see any reason that the stores should bear the cost. I'm certainly willing to take it. That's
basically my pitch. That, it sounds like a good idea to me and I encourage you to place me in a
need to change. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Diven. At this time, hang on Mr. Diven, in case there's
questions from--
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MR. DIVEN: Oh, I'm sorry.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: --from my, the Council Members. Any questions for Mr. Diven? Yes,
Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Diven, for being here this
morning. Listening to you was pretty interesting in regards to, you know, we got the HI-5
Bottle Bill that incent [sic1 people to recycle the plastic bottles as well as the plastic cans. The
idea about, you know, doing something with plastic bags similar to that maybe is an option that
we should take a look at. But, you know I go to Costco, at times, and you know they don't
have any bags. All they provide you is a cart and you take all of your goods. Either they put it
in an empty box or you take it to your car and you put it in a box of your own. Maybe
something like that, you know, should be looked at by some of the supermarkets here in Maui
County to get away from the plastic bags. I just wauna thank you for being here providing you,
you providing us with your thoughts about, you know, incentives. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any...yeah, Council Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Morning, Mr. Diven, and thank you for sharing
your perspective with us especially about the point on encouraging people to change and, you
know, plastic bags. It's a nice convenience, but is it a necessity? And you made some good
points about, you know, considering other options: paper or maybe a more durable bag to
purchase from the store. And I like the fact that you mention that businesses are not going to
go under because we decide to ban plastic bags. Yourself personally now you, you, when you
go to stores, you sort of think about whether to accept plastic or paper, now. You're
considering those options now since this, I guess this idea or proposal came out? Or have you
been doing this even before the proposal came out? Because you know we all know what
environmental damage these bags have been doing. Can you share with us briefly?
MR. DIVEN: Yes. Until the proposal came out, I was, I just used plastic bags. I never gave it a
second thought. It was just a facet of my environment that I never considered. When I read of,
in the newspaper of the proposal, I thought, hey that's a great idea. Shortly after that, I
observed some, the reusable bags and I got some of those. They're in my truck, and almost
without fail, I forget to bring them into the store. That I can never remember to bring it in the
store. The closest I've come is I gather up a few items in my hand and take it out. That and I
consciously tell stores no plastic, please. That, so, I've attempted. I mean it has encouraged
me to change just as it is. That, and I had no affiliation with the concept before this proposal
came to light.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. And you know, one thing. I would hope the, I've been
trying to encourage some of the retailers. Put a sign on their doors as you walk in to remind
you to get your reusable bags. I know how it is. You're standing in the checkout line, then
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finally you're thinking oh boy I got my bags in my car. I forgot and most people don't want to
give up their place in line to go get their bags. But, anyway, I just wanted to thank you for your
perspective. It's much appreciated. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other questions? Yes, Councilmember -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: --Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I think we all got a correspondence from the Office of the
Mayor regarding Plastic Bag Reduction Bill. And I want to ask Mr. Diven a question regarding
his reusable bag. It goes on to say that, you know, the reusable bags sometimes get
contaminated with chicken blood or something that causes bacteria. How often do you wash
your bags? Or if you wash it at all?
MR. DIVEN: Well, I haven't gotten any stains, you know, per se in the bags. The, it's been mostly dry
goods and cans and that kind of stuff. The, I, the bags I got were in the ones Foodland, you
know you, you get enough points and they give you a free bag and that kind of stuff. It, it, I
think, on two phases. One is, it looks to me to be washable; and the other is, at a dollar, it's
replaceable. That I see it as reducing the volume of plastic rather than eliminate everything.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other questions? I just have one, one interesting
observation and I'll let you go, Mr. Diven. I thought it was very interesting the way you said,
we all have to bear the cost, because it's not only your environment or my environment, it's our
environment; and part of the cost of insnring the future generations a good, safe, clean
environment is what we do today. So, we all have to bear the cost. There's no free lunch in
any of these things and I thank you for bringing it up because I think that's one of the stumbling
blocks. A lot of times, people say it's gonna cost me. But, the little cost you spend today
insures a better future and I think that's very important. Would you agree with that?
MR. DIVEN: Yes, I do.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you, Mr. Diven. Thank you for your time for being here.
MR. DIVEN: Thank you very much.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Next testifier our wonderful Mrujie Bonar.
MS. BONAR: Why, thank you. . .. (chuckled) ...
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: And then Michael, Mike Elhoffwill be the next one, next testifier, I should
say.
MS. BONAR: Good morning, Council Members. I'm here again, singing the same song it seems.
Unfortunately, you asked all the questions I wish you'd asked me of the previous speaker. I'm,
I'm just feeling this has been way too long in waiting to come because having to get rid of
plastic bags--'course my personal feeling is all of them. I'm representing Maui Outdoor Circle
and the Maui Garden Club. I'm President of one and on the Board of the other. . .. (throat
cleared) ... Excuse me. One item that I really wanted to potentially even add to this bill, to be
mindful of, would be those signs for parking lots or on the doors. Every time I check out,
there's somebody in line that says, ooh, I left my bags in the car. A simple sign in the parking
lot. I'm so embarrassed now that if I forgotten all my bags, I've still got one of these or two or
three of them in my purse. All the Councilmembers I hope have had a chance to keep these on
their person or their designated shopper. I take these to Macy's. I take them wherever I go. I
haven't acquired a new plastic bag in a very long time. And, but I came here being accustomed
to recycling and reusing. We came from a community when we moved on island that was very
actively recycling because it was at the end of a peninsula, and it wasn't all that different from
being on an island.
So, I'm finding that in looking at some of the other bills, which I've been doing, the Oakland
Ban has, is now in the courts because their wording became problematic with California law,
and the plastics industry ushered them right into court. Because theirs was get rid of plastic,
use paper; it's more environmentally sound. Well, it may be here, but it's not wherever that
paper was being manufactured. And if gets into a landfill, it will still take space; but at least
with paper, if it gets into the water, nothing dies from eating it. I didn't bring you more ugly
graphic pictures. This time, it would have been the gut content of a dead whale full of, this is a
Baleen feeder, full of plastic particles and plastic bags.
So now that so many other places, it's not that we should follow along blindly, but so many
places have experienced what goes on when you reduce it. China, in the past two weeks, since
instituting the ban against thin plastic bags on June 1st, has evidently reduced their plastic bag
consumption by 90 percent. Wouldn't it be wonderful if we could reduce ours by 90 percent?
Better than that, totally.
So, beyond that, I'm open for questions. Or, I can stand and talk awhile. By the way, this is
my answer now to the plastic vegetable bags--is I don't need to take those out of anyplace
except for Puk Sup [sic], and I know that they'll never put in counters that can waste.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Questions for Ms. Bonar? See none.
MS. BONAR: See! What is this? They give all the ...
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: It's because of your expertise-MS. BONAR: Oh ... but...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: --because of your wonderful sharing with us.
MS. BONAR: Thank you. But can I also mention that almost all of these recyclable bags are
washable and the least desirable are the cotton and canvas bags because those are the hardest to
wash and maintain.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: And I'll say this much, Ms. Bonar.
MS. BONAR: Oh, I've also got another fistful of signatures. Do you want me to keep handing these
in, or hold on to them for a while?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: You can hang on to them. But I wanted to make one note and thank you
very much for being here, but I like your suggestion like Council Chair, Councilmember
Molina's suggestion, in the parking lot and on the door, because you're right. When you're in
line and you remember to get the reusable bag, it's err. You're too late already. So, yeah, I
agree, you know. Or like you have all those in your purse; but I don't have a purse, so real
difficult to carry one.
MS. BONAR: Well, but they fit in Dale's back pocket. He goes to, to Home Depot. But the other
thing is, the people that are a little over the top like I am leave that cart in the store and go back
to the parking lot.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you very much. Okay, moving on. Our next testifier, Mike
Elhoff.
MR. ELHOFF: Thank you, Chair, Members. My name is Mike Elhoff, and I am addicted to plastic
bags. I thank the other testifiers. I thought they hit a lot of the good points. I am a partner in
Styrophobia, a Honolulu-based company dedicated to offering biodegradable alternatives to
petroleum based plastics. I'm also an engineer and I dedicated the last year and a half of my
life to this cause. I've done a lot of research and this spring, I went up against some pretty
powerful lobbyists in the State Legislature. And we didn't get a bag ban and I came here to
Maui and I've been coming to Maui since '86 and I love Maui and I love what you guys are
doing and, and your comments.
I wanted to emphasize that the one thing I learned in the State Legislature is the mountain that
we're trying to climb with this addiction is too big right now and it's really critical that the
County of Maui look at this issue and the other counties. Because although your mountains are
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pretty big, that the State mountain is just so huge with interests, special interests, with just the,
ah, the intricacies of the State govermnent.
I submitted 13 pages of testimony, reluctantly, because I know how busy you guys are and it's a
lot of words, but the testimony I chose carefully. The first two pages were my summary of the
issues. I couldn't hit all the issues. It's a pretty diverse topic. The following, I'll point out the,
there's an excerpt from the Hawaii Food Industry Association, who represents companies like
Foodland, Safeway, Times, et cetera; and their position is against this measure and they, in the
State Legislature, testified emphatically against it. But I'll point out on their own website,
they're recycling, they give explicit instructions on how to recycle these bags. And then I
highlighted in that testimony, where they point out, and that's been on there for over two years,
that they have no solution for recycling of these bags. There was a stunt by Walmart earlier this
year on Maui to collect these bags and send them back to the mainland. The carbon footprint of
that scenario is pretty bad. They have to ship an entire container of these bags, which have
very little fuel value. They have very little recylability value, even if you are in Cleveland,
Ohio. So imagine shipping 5,000 miles on top of that.
We, we offer a compostable alternatives. I wanted to emphasize that our first and foremost
priority is reusable, reduce, reuse, recycle. I also brought--I'm up to the red light--but I brought
some compost, which includes compostable bags. We're working with local composters to
control this waste stream. I believe in recycling, but, but plastic bags are very hard to recycle
and our motto is "Don't Plastic the Pacific." Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mike. And, and hang on, because I know there's some
questions. I'll open the floor up to questions. Councilmember Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mike, and thank you for coming
down and sharing your testimony, especially the perspective with regards to the State. You
mentioned the Retail Industry and I guess their big thing is to do the "Knot your Bag"
campaign and all the recycling. From your research, I'm sure other States have looked at
recycling plastic bags. Has there been any success with recycling the bags rather than banning
in comparison?
MR. ELHOFF: Thank you. The, it's actually, I put in my testimony the amount of bags that are
consumed each year in the U.S. and the recycling rate is around 0.6 percent. I also put in a bar
chart, which was also in the Hawaii Food Industry Association website, which shows the
recyclability, relative recyclability of these plastics, and it's miniscule. And Hawaii is
exacerbated by our distance from these recycling facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So basically recycling is not feasible at all. It's just--well I don't
want to say a waste of time, but there's no incentive for the consumer to recycle.
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MR. ELHOFF: It's actually, if they bring 'em to the store, right now, and I talked to the head of Down
to Earth stores. I've talked to the head of Foodland. They are having to collect these bags
because there's no where else to put 'em. On Oahu, they have H-power and the lobbyists love
H.power cause they can burn 'em, but they have very little BTU value for the amount of
trouble they cause. I talk to H-power and they get caught in the splines of their conveyors. I
went to the composting facilities where plastic bags are their worst enemy. They had to hire
seven people to stand on the line and remove these bags. So recycling bottles is great.
Recycling aluminum is the best thing you can do, but bags, it just doesn't work. It's worse for
the environment than what you're trying to do.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. One, one more, ifI may. I thought it was very interesting you
have here in your testimony--and I'll put this for public record--that in America, we throwaway
100 billion polyethylene bags each year, plastic bags each year; and of that, we recycle
approximately .06 [sic}. So if you were to do your math, that's a tremendous amount of plastic
that is being thrown away in our landfills and in our environment; and I thought that was, you
know, an awesome figure to have there. I'm sorry, Council, Vice-Chair Mateo. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much for being here.
Styrophobia. You know I guess because of the more recent consciousness of the potential--not
potential--of the dangers, you know and the harm to our environment because of, in part, a lot
due to the plastic bags. Your company, has your business actually increased because of this
awareness?
MR. ELHOFF: Yes it has. We started in January 2007. We had a pretty good sized loss for 2007, and
we're just getting momentum. The first half of 2008 has resulted in dis ..., large distributors,
such as VIP on Maui, Hansen Food Service, Malolo Beverages, Diamond Head Distributors, all
of these companies are now inventorying these products, which was really our battle. We
didn't want to get in the distribution business. We wanted them to do it. And now these
retailers have a, they can get stuff off to the shelf, as it were, on deliveries that are already being
made to their stores.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So that increase in your business, that has in your summation due to
the awareness and the education being provided because of the hazards occurring in our State?
MR. ELHOFF: I think the, I think there's an underlying purpose in that we are aware that our Honus
are choking on bags. We're aware that our tourists are being tumed off by bags sitting in trees.
But I think the catalyst for it was the State action and the Maui action. And Maui was really on
the forefront of this and I'm just proud to be here discussing this issue because it got in the
newspapers. It got on the TV and people started thinking and the comments you heard earlier
represent that.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other questions or comments from the Members? Yes,
Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
stickers, where can folks pick them up?

Just one request for Mike. Those bumper

MR. ELHOFF: On our website, Styrophobia.com and we'd be happy to get them to you. We have
"Don't Plastic the Pacific" and "There's No Home for Foam."
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right, thank you.
MR. ELHOFF: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. One quick question, ifI may. Do you find that more and more
of these retailers that you're referring to, that big mountain, because of the awareness and
because of education, especially with our youngsters who will be the next purchasing
generation. Do you find them at least willing to come to the table and talk about some changes
and doing some of these things. 'Cause they are very powerful, we all understand that. They
got lots of money and they'll fight until they realize the fight's no longer good and then they'll
come, you know, come in and be a part of the game. But do you see some change in that
respect? 'Cause you've just mentioned a whole number of companies that are taking a--do you
find that more receptacle, more receptive by their part?
MR. ELHOFF: Yes, I do. And it's very interesting because plastic bags came on the scene in 1977 and
so the old-timers know what it was like without bags, and they somehow survived without
them. The generation that I fall into really, I mean I have to think way back to think about what
it was like before bags, plastic bags. And so, the younger generation now, because they're
hearing this, because San Francisco, India, all these countries around the world are banning
bags. Ireland taxes bags 20 cents and so people are not, they're reusing their bags. So we see
the young people coming in now. So I think it's in a very interesting demographic where
people are realizing now the environmental implieations of our aetions the last 30 years.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: And you remember, Mike, that the main reason for the change to plastic
was because we used to use paper bags and because the destruction of our forests that the
change was made to go to plastic because it was cheaper and you wouldn't have to destroy so
many forests. And we've created a whole new problem for ourselves, environmentally and
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otherwise. And, I think another key to this is petroleum. As petroleum rises, plastic becomes
more expenSIve.
MR. ELHOFF: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: And so people start to change. It's funny how economics and the rise in
oil prices has made a lot of us change our thinking. Whether driving, whether plastics, whether
whatever we use that is petroleum based making us think a lot more and I think, hey. That's the
good side of rising oil prices. It's making us change quicker than we might've if we had cheap
oil and cheap plastic. Everybody doesn't want to spend money.
The other thing is, I'll say that the old folks here, they still like the plastic bags to put their
garbage in. You know, you hear that all the time. Right? And I hear that on the street, you
know, don't ban plastic. I can't use it, then I won't have something to put my garbage in.
There's so many other alternatives but they just got into that habit. Yeah?
MR. ELHOFF: Yeah, and that, that's an interesting point because we think those bags are free, you
know, and you can't. I mean I have to literally push baek these store clerks, 'cause they're like,
you sure you don't want a bag. You sure, to put that apple in? You sure? I'm like yes, I'm
sure. And it's very interesting because that, that whole aspeet of it, is there's definitely ways to
pay for bags other than assume they're free. Those stores have to pay for that plastic bag and
they're passing it on to you; you just don't see it.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Right. Thank you, Mike. Okay. If nothing else, thank you very much and
please, we'll get in touch with you for some of those bumper stickers. I think that's something
very, very good to have around.
MR. ELHOFF: Thank you, Maui.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Before I close public testimony, I will make one more
armouncement. Anyone in the gallery who would like to come up? (NOTE: Speaking to
Ms. Zirbel, in the gallery, who raised her hand) Come! If you would like to speak on the
issue, you can sign up afterwards with the Council Secretary. (NOTE: Speaking to Ms. Zirbel,
as she turned to head back to her seat instead of approaching the podium.) No, come! With
our, with our Secretary, but in the meantime, if you go and give your name and who you
represent or what organization, please.
MS. ZIRBEL: Good morning, and thank you so much for the opportunity to testifY. My name is
Lauren Zirbel, and I'm here on behalf of Hawaii Food Industry Association.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning.
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MS. ZIRBEL: Thanks. Although we do not dispute Maui Council's authority to ban plastic bags that
do not meet certain characteristics, we have concerns with the particular wording of this bill
and the functionality of it. First off, the food industry is doing a lot to create educational
programs to encourage reusable bags, especially here on Maui. We've worked with many of
your high schools and we have papers and posters that they've produced with our volunteers
support in your community.
Also, this measure, the measure before the Committee today prohibits the use of the field's
most innovative and cost-saving technology, oxo-biodegradable bags. It aborts plastic
recycling, which is on the rise in Hawaii and is increasing everyday. And it endorses a product
namely crop-derived PLA products, which the World Bank states has a negative impact on the
environment and results in higher food prices and shortages. Oxo-biodegradable products
enable stores to continue recycling plastic bags. However these bags, if littered, and not
recycled as they should be, will biodegrade in any natural environment. They represent a
cost-efficient alternative for grocery stores because they have a negligible increase in costs.
They can be added to plastic producing manufacturing bags right now as opposed to a 30
percent increase in costs from some of the PLA products. We hope that the Committee will
consider these factors when deciding whether or not to ban particular types of bags.
Also, we would like to, the Committee to take into consideration that compostable PLA is
temperature sensitive and will start softening at temperatures of 100 degrees plus Fahrenheit.
Beyond those temperatures, which may reach well over 100 degrees at warehouses, especially
in Hawaii, the products can melt and fragment into dust. Oxo-biodegradable products will
perform in the same marmer as regular conventional plastic and are not ... (end of tape, start 1B
at 9:38 a.m.) . .. temperature sensitive. Oxo-biodegradable products degrade in any normal
outdoor environment. Or, however, PLA products require specific microbial and compost
heaps. I talked to several composting facilities on Maui. In fact, I talked to all of them and I
talked to the Maui County Recycling Program, and I was told that none of the composting
facilities here in Hawaii take compostable products. None of them take wet food waste, postconsumer food waste, because they don't have the permitting for it, and it would require
thousands of dollars to get the permitting to test for the EPA requirements for post-consumer
waste, which have to test for bacteria and metallics. The person that I talked to was Maui Earth
Compost, Tim Gunther, and he stated that if they did create a wet food waste program, they
would have to charge about $80 a ton for food waste. Because, and because the permitting,
permitting's so expensive, and there's no place on Maui to bring food waste and compostable
products. So I think what maybe we would like to consider is that although compostable bags
sounds very environmentally friendly, they're not environmentally friendly unless there's a
place for them to compost because they won't just disappear when they're out littered in the
ocean or in society. So, maybe consider some alternatives. Thank you so much for your time.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you and, and if, for your comments, and I'll open the floor up to
questions if you don't mind. Council Members, questions for the young lady? Councilmember
Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Lauren.
MS. ZIRBEL: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for sharing the other side of the, the -MS. ZIRBEL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --issue. You mentioned recycling is on the rise. That information
was given to you by whom? Was that the ...
MS. ZIRBEL: Well we know for a fact that Walmart is offering to pick up plastic bags from all
smaller retailers at this point. So, that is increasing and also our, Derek Kurisu, who is the head
of KTA on the Big Island and he's also involved in all of these educational programs. They
collect all of their plastic bags at the store and they combine with other retailers and they ship
them back to the mainland and they get decreased rates on freight because it's for recycling.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Did they give you a percentage? I mean what percent of
recycling it's increasing.
MS. ZIRBEL: I don't have a specific percentage for Hawaii, but I know nationally, it's been
increasing.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: If possible could you provide us the information for Maui County?
'Cause the, the bill is basically aimed at, for Maui County.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And I know Oahu, they have the H-Power but you know we don't
have -MS. ZIRBEL: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --that kind of facility here so which is part of the nexus for the ban.
MS. ZIRBEL: And I think right now because there is so much attention on this issue, people are
becoming a lot more aware; and we, I mean, food industry is really supporting the reusable bag.
I mean we hand out lots of them for free. We sell them at our stores for 99 cents. We think
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that's the best, most cost-effective solution to the problem. And, you know, these products,
they don't come out of a vacuum. Corn prices have doubled. There's a real food shortage
issue, front page news, the Midwest corn fields are flooded. I mean these products are creating
increases in cost and, you know. They're not, they don't come out of a vacuum. Plastic bags
aren't good for the environment, either. I think the answer is just to reduce use altogether,
right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. ZffiEL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Any other questions for the testifier? If I may, yeah, and, and
I have a couple real quick ones and you did mention about the increased cost.
MS. ZIRBEL: Uh-huh.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Do you feel with the increased cost in petroleum, for which plastic bags
are basically a derivative, do you see that also contributing to the changeover or people's ability
or willingness to change, I should say?
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah, definitely. I think that, I don't know specifically that the price of plastic bags, of
producing plastic bags has increased significantly. One of our members creates plastic bags on
Oahu as a facility in Kalihi that employs over 100 people. But they're looking into these
degradable additives as well and, you know, there, 'cause there are certain stores that have been
considering these compostable bags on Oahu. And a lot of them have stepped back from it and,
because of the World Bank statement about corn and ethanol and that whole debate about
sustainability and kind of they're looking at other options. And there's--actually I made copies
if you guys want--there's a article from CNN that talks about the downsides of compostable
products. And it talks about these additives for polyethylene plastic bags which ...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, when you sign up with the Secretary, would you please give us
that -MS. ZIRBEL: Okay.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: --and we'll make copies to make sure that ...
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah, I have it right here.

- 14-

PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE
Council of tbe County of Maui
June 18, 2008

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh, you have copies? Yeah, please. If you would just give it to our
Secretary here and we'll make sure it gets out to all the Members.
MS. ZIRBEL: Okay, great. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. And the last thing I'd like to ask you is, the retail industry is a very
massive and very powerful lobbyist. But my question to them is this, and this concerns Maui,
but it's, you know, Statewide, Nationwide. I mean we're one world, you know, and it's not
gonna,just because we do one thing on Maui, which is a starting point, it's still a lot of things.
MS. ZIRBEL: Right.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: But does the retail industry itself begin to understand that this change, like
other changes, is gonna happen?
MS. ZIRBEL: Is inevitable. Right.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. ZIRBEL: We do realize that. And you know we're taking steps to look into, like these additives,
you know. We're, we're talking to representatives from that industry and we're looking into
those sorts of additives for our plant on Oahu, but also as far as retailers in general. We're
definitely stepping up our recycling efforts and we're looking into these degradable additives
for our plant on Oahu. We're just not, basically, we don't know that it's fair to ask retailers to
pay 30, upwards of 30 percent when there isn't a facility to compost them right now. That's
kind of our position.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, you bring up, you bring up a good point. And I think that's just part
of the whole picture. And the last thing I'll ask you is, do you guys include these outside
organizations like Sierra Club, Outdoor Circle, other environmental groups in your discussion
and where you want take this? Because they seem to have some very valid and interesting and
real dynamic concerns and you don't seem to, you know, I'd like to see them part of the picture.
Because you know go to the people who have the knowledge and who have the passion, and
maybe you'll find quicker and more economic answers.
MS. ZIRBEL: Right
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: So do you guys, do you guys participate with them?
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah, we try. I mean we try to look at things from an environmental standpoint because
we don't want to appear not environmentally friendly. We do want to do what's best but we
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want to find a solution to the problem, and we think that the solution to plastic bags is reducing,
reusing and recycling.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. ZIRBEL: And just cutting down on usage.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, I guess the last thing I'll say is--and I say this in, with a little, no, I'll
say it straight out--I hope it's not just a nice fa<rade, but a real effort.
MS. ZIRBEL: Uh-huh.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Because, you know, I have had experience with other organizations, major,
you know, conglomerates that give you this big fa<;:ade; but behind of it, there's nothing
happening. So, you know, I hope you guys realize that this is coming and you, if we work
together we'll find quicker-MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: --and more valid solutions. If you're gonna put a fa<rade up, we'll get
through it sooner or later and ...
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah. We realize that the heat is on, definitely, and we are, I mean, we just had our
convention last weekend; and you know and I said that when I gave my speech about what we
were doing in the Legislature. I said, if we don't solve this problem ourselves, which is what
we're trying to do, and we have these educational problems, we're, this is going to be shoved
down our throat no matter what. So you, we have to come up with a solution to the problem,
you know, and we're really working on that.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, thank you very much; we appreciate it. Any other questions? If
not...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I'm sorry. Go ahead, Mr. Mateo. I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, thank you very much. Thank you very much for being here.
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MS. ZIRBEL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I just wanted to, to, perhaps to share a couple of comments on what
you had just shared with us. One is the fact that the industry is trying to be envirorunentally
friendly. And your comments to not really knowing whether or not the cost of plastic had, had
majorly increased. And you need to understaod that the cost plastics definitely increased
because it sure as hell cost us a lot of money to take care of our envirorunent.
MS. ZIRBEL: Db-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: It cost us a hell of a lot of money to take care of our marine life. It
cost us a hell of a lot of money to be able to ensure that the dangers and the rigors of plastic is
limited. In addition, in addition to that, I'm really excited that the industry is really stepping
forward and trying to make a difference; but, you know, sometimes it gets to the point of a little
too late because, because the industry should've seen this coming because it's not a new issue.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The issue has been around a long time. So, it's not shoving it down
your throat. It's doing what -MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --is responsible. Both for your industry and for us as the general
public. So I just wanted to share that with you because nobody's shoving nothing down your
guys throat.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: The reality is you have a responsibility, as the industry, to, to help to
protect, you know, and preserve what's precious to us; and that is not plastics.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Member Mateo. But I will add on that if you don't do it, then
we will shove it down their throat.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I'm sorry.
MS. ZIRBEL: I mean that's true.... (chuckled) ...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: And that's the facts of life, you know, and that's why we're here--to
protect the public.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: So, if you're not going to do it, by damn, we -MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: --will shove it down your throat.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: And I'm sorry if that doesn't come out well, but that's the facts and -MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah, and we ...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: --we've gotta move.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah, I agree with that whole perspective.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I'd rather work with you and find solutions.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: But if you're not, then we'll work against you and make sure it's done.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Plain and simple.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you very much, my dear.
MS. ZIRBEL: Thank you so much.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I appreciate it.
MS. ZIRBEL: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. We have one more testifier, Kuhea Parachuelles, and she is with the
Mayor's office on environmental and Kuhea is a very expert in this area.
MS. PARACUELLES: Oh, I wouldn't call myself an expert.. ,. (chuckled) ...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. PARACUELLES: Good morning.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Good morning.
MS. PARACUELLES: I'd like to just, well, I'd like to address Councilmember Molina's comment
about what do you do when you forget your bags in the car, you forget your bags at home? And
like Marge Bonar, I feel like I can't go to the store and take a plastic bag now; otherwise, I'll be
struck by lightning the minute I step out the door. So I never get caught doing that. Or where I
can help it. So what I do is like Costco. You go to the store. You do all your shopping. You
take everything out in your cart and you put it into your car. I don't even take the cardboard
box. And ah, so, if I forget my bags in the car, I'll just do my shopping and tell the cashier to
please ring it, everything up, put it back in the cart, and I take it to my car where my bags are
and pack it there myself. So that way I can feel good about not taking the plastic and I can still,
you know, use my reusable bags.
Anyway, about a year ago, on behalf of the Mayor, I started a reusable shopping bag promotion.
We'll get the groundwork in, in conjunction with the International Year of the Reef. And at that
time, it didn't seem like there were that many businesses on board with providing their own
reusable shopping bags; but come a year later, it's amazing to see how many stores provide
their own bags to customers. And that's great because this precedes any type of ban.
And so, again, it means a change of behavior on how we get people to change their practices.
And any, if you talk to anyone who spends any amount of time on the ocean, they'll tell you
how much plastic they see in the water and how much plastic bags they pluck out of the water.
And so I think it's something that we have to get used to doing and I remember a time. I'm old
enough to remember a time before we ever had plastic bags and I don't think it's that difficult.
We shouldn't have to turn on the TV to watch Survivor to learn how to live on an island. All
we need to do I think is look back into the past and how things were done and I think we can do
it.
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And Judge Larry Potter, who was here speaking to us from Shelby, Tennessee, and he invented
Environmental Court and he said, you know, education is great; but when you hit people in the
pocketbook, he finds that their hearts and souls will soon follow. And I think this is going to
take a great partnership with the business community and I would urge them to charge people
for the plastic bags if they have to give them out. Cost recovery is critical for any business and
I think if people have to decide between paying an extra 25 cents or whatever it is, that they
will really consider it and make a decision whether or not they really need that bag. And I think
that is just a small measure but will make a big difference in the long run. So, that's all I really
wanted to say for now.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Kuhea. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you for being here. And I was waiting for you to show off the bag.
MS. PARACUELLES: I passed them all out.
(NOTE: Ms. Bonar held up two bags in the gaUery.)

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Ahh ... oh there, there, there, look at. There, go ahead. So that everyone
gets to see the Year of the Reef and this is what the County of Maui, via the Mayor's office.
Right?
MS. PARACUELLES: Right.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Via the Administration.
MS. PARACUELLES: Right. This is Mayor Tavares' campaign for the International Year of the Reef.
And we have these new reusable shopping bags and we're teaming up, teaming up with local
grocery stores to pass them out for free to people and they will also get some education about
protecting our coral reefs. And on the back of the bags are ten simple things that people can do
everyday to protect coral reefs and it starts by using this reusable bag.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Kuhea.
MS. PARACUELLES: Thank you.

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY • •.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. So then the public knows now that's available. Thank you. Any
other testifiers? Seeing none, if it's, the Committee's approval, r d like to close public
testimony at this time with no objections.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Okay. Now, let's go to PWF-68. The Committee is in receipt
of the County Communication No. 07-232 from Councilmember Mike Molina transmitting a
draft bill prohibiting certain businesses from providing non-biodegradable plastic bags and
requiring the use of environmentally preferred alternatives. The Committee is also in receipt of
correspondence dated November 6, 2007, from Councilmember Michael Molina, transmitting
correspondence the Department of Corp. Counsel, Corporation Counsel, also dated November
6, 2007, transmitting a revised proposed bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
ESTABLISHING A NEW CHAPTER 20.18, MAUl COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO
PLASTIC BAG REDUCTION". The purpose of the revised proposed bill was to prohibit
certain businesses from providing non-biodegradable plastic bags and requiring the use of
environmentally-preferred alternatives.
As you can, as you will recall, the Committee met previously on this item on March 12, 2008.
Public testimony was received at that time; and subsequent, a panel discussion was allowed for
various aspects of this revised proposed bill to be explored. At this time, I would like a brief
introductory remarks from Non-Voting Member Molina, after which we either, our
representatives, or the Administration may make comments.
Mr. Molina, would you like to make a brief comment in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Other than the, I guess the previous
meeting we had I just wanted to thank you for bringing this matter out again to continue the
process and look at the whole issue from both the pro and the con aspects. So I'm encouraged
by the Committee's indulgence of this matter and I'm hoping we can make some progress
today. And I wanna thank Member Mateo yesterday for introducing an amendment to the
Code, which would allow the Director of Environmental Management to enforce certain
aspects of this proposed ban should it pass. So, other than that, I'm just ready to continue the
process, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. I think we all agree this is something very
important and ... whether we shoving it down their throat or they're coming to the table, by
doing this, we made everybody start work, start the process. And I think Councilmember
Mateo hit the nail right on the head. Without that, we'd still be sitting here waiting for
something to happen.
At this time, I'd like to call upon the Administrative, Administration's representative from the
Environmental Management Department, Cheryl Okuma. If you'd like to say an opening
statement in regards to this proposed bill.
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MS. OKUMA: Thank you, Committee Chair and Committee Members. In line with what I had
previously mentioned at our panel discussion a few months ago, we support the concept of the
plastic bag reduction and the realization is how do we get there. And in endeavoring towards
that goal, there were just two areas of consideration and I just want to touch upon those again
just so we don't forget that.
One is obviously the legal structure that we would need to have in place to fully implement
such a program. And we realize that one aspect of that in the administrative enforcement
ordinance is moving through the system. But we also need to have the appropriate rules and
regs to actually implement based on, based on the ordinance.
Another consideration is also to be sure that we have the current resources and the staffing. We
realize that there's some technical, technical requirements under the ordinance with respect to
regulating. And so we would need to be sure that we have that knowledge and expertise in our,
within our department in order to do such implementation.
So, those are just two general areas and, you know, be happy to go into a little more detail on
that. But, thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Okuma. And before I open the floor for questions for you,
I'll also recognize our Director from the Office of Economics (sic), Deidre Tegarden. And if
you'd like to say a few words and bring your, the perspective from the economic side.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yep. Thank you very much, Committee Chair, Committee Members, and thank
you for the opportunity to be here this morning. You know as we look toward a green and
sustainable Maui County, the Administration certainly supports a reduction in plastic bags. We
all know what the plastic bags are doing to our environment, and with the fuel costs and all of
that. So, one thing we want to ensure, however, that as we implement these changes, we do so
in a manner that we're working with our business community and our residents and not putting
any undue hardships on them. But, bottom line, what is good for the community and what is
good for the environment is something that is going to move us forward so we certainly support
this reduction in plastic bags.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Tegarden -MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: --I appreciate that. At this time, I'll open the floor for questions from the
Members, starting with Councilmember Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Question for Ms. Okuma. You mentioned several
things this morning in regards to this proposed bill. One of the questions that I have is that on
the legal aspects, can you provide some examples in regards to that area?
MS. OKUMA: Okay, well thank you for that question. First of all, we realize that this would basically
be the ordinance and obviously we'd be talking to Corp. Counsel as far as making sure we have
the appropriate infrastructure, but I do believe we would also need to look at whether we need
further administrative rules and regs in order to implement the program.
The other thing is that there are some technical definitions because it looks like from this
revised proposal the Department of Environmental Management would have the responsibility
of administering and enforcing. And so obviously we need to look at the definitions of some of
these terms we're talking about. You know, just for example, when we mentioned recyclable
paper bags, you know, the mention of "contains no old growth fiber". You know we need to
understand ourselves, what is that and how do we enforce and regulate based on that?
That's just kind of an example. So we would obviously need to look at what's required in
terms of what we need to regulate. And to be sure that we have that understanding and
expertise developed within our department as well as whatever resources and staffing we're
going to need to run this program. 'Cause number one, we need to put it in place. That's an
effort. And number two, we need to keep it going and running. And the other consideration is
obviously the enforcement aspects or the, the other requirements that go with that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you for that response. And I, the next question that I
had and I think you, you know kinda answered it. In regards to the staffing requirements,
somebody that ean understand, you know, the recycling efforts that your department is going to
be faced with. You know that type of personnel doesn't come out, you know, everyday. So,
thank you for your response in regards to the question that I asked this morning. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Councilmember Mateo? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. Okuma, you had the opportunity of taking
a look at the, the proposed bill (the draft bill)?
MS.OKUMA: You know, I've looked at this and I'm not sure that I know ifthere was a change from
this one, from what we saw last time. It seems like there's some slight revisions but I'm not
positive.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Then you did see under one provision under Administration
that it will require the Director to provide the administrative rules and it'll be indicative of a
requirement of establishing it within 180 days. So, I'm going to assume, at this point that, you
know, that in itself will be a challenging task for your Department to begin with. And because
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this bill has been with us for a period of time during the budget process had you anticipated
personnel required for this particular implementation?
MS. OKUMA: Thank you for that question. No, we have not.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And aside from, well one of your concerns was the legal
structure which is something that one, the ordinance itself will have to directly deal with
through our advisement of Corporation Council as we go through establishing the ordinance.
So, your challenge would be the adhering to the Code, the law itself, with the development of
your own administrative rules. So, that is something that, you know, I no like say you don't
have a choice in doing, but you don't have choice in doing. You're gonna have to comply with
the law itself. But we do want to assist you because one, you're a new department; two, this is
a new implementation requirement. So I'm hoping that we'd all be able to work and assist you
so you can continue to tell us what you perceive the needs are as this process continues to
unfold. So when we do go into actually adopting it, that we allow you the opportunity to have
a good transition through the need to implement.
MS. OKUMA: Thank you, Councilmember Mateo, for noting that. Because as you so note, yes, this
is going to be a new program for us; and as you are aware, as you point out, there's a whole
lotta things that go into establishing and setting up and new program let alone keeping it going.
So we appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO:
Yeah,
Councilmember Molina?

Council,

thank

you,

Mateo,

Councilmember

Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Ms. Okuma. In terms of the
enforcement aspect, what, I guess, ideas have you come up with in terms of monitoring it? I
mean, assuming if this passes, how would the Department go out and check on stores to make
sure that, I guess, bags are banned? They're not being doled out. Or is it, are you looking at
something more that's complaint driven? I see, instead of, you know, having the so-called "bag
policemen" if you will, you know, if we have to hire additional personnel. Would you folks
consider maybe something being along the lines of more of a complaint driven? Maybe
working with a volunteer group to sort of monitor and see what's going on? I mean can you
share with us what you've -MS.OKUMA: Urn.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --been considering.
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MS.OKUMA: Yeah. Thank you, Councilmember Molina. First of all, I think we, we haven't
certainly made any kind of determination. And would appreciate any kind of flexibility that the
ordinance would give us because well we would have to balance whatever resources and
staffing we have in terms of what level of effort we can provide. And we haven't decided on
that, but as you point out, yes there are different ways. You can either have people going out
there to actually interface with the businesses. I can tell you we don't have the resources and
the staff to do that. The other way could be just simply the, the, the notice of warnings and if
there's requirements on the part of the businesses to submit information, we know that that's an
aspect we don't have any kind of legal teeth to make requirements on the businesses. So, those
are things that we need to take a look at and in consultation with the advice of our Corp.
Counsel to see what is possible within whatever the legal infrastructure is that we're looking at
and perhaps that actually goes into what our legal infrastructure is. So, those are very good
questions that we're going to have to take a look at.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Thank you.
MS. OKUMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: One _ __
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Before I recognize Councilmember PontanilJa, I want to make note that
under 20.18.060, we are giving and it reads basically, combustible bags will be prohibited from,
for, for distribution from any business at the point of sale in five years from the effective date
of this ordinance. So, there is a time frame. This is not going to happen overnight, and I want
people to understand. Although Mrujorie, I know you want it today; and I would love to be
with you today. The fact of the matter is it's a time implemented. And one thing I found out
when being in San Francisco, also up in King County up in Seattle, it's an educational process.
It's a, it's a change. And if we remember the real crux of this is, plastic bag reduction. It
wasn't elimination. Eventually, hopefully, that will be the next step. So I think, you know,
sometime we have hysteria. We have people taking what you say here and putting it
somewhere else or saying something that's really not what we intended.
So, Ms. Okuma, let me say that it's not like if we pass this out tomorrow, you have to get all
this enforcement together and all that. It is a process and so I want that noted that, you know,
even though you have 180 days to get your administrative rules together, you know, the way it's
reading, we'd have time to educate and make the change. And I think that was your intent,
Councilmember Molina, is to make the change over a period of time.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Very important to understand that because I think sometimes we get
wrapped up in hysteria and wondering something going happen tomorrow, when it's really not
the truth. The truth is we're working to find a reasonable solution to work with the industry, to
work with the Outdoor Circle, the Sierra Club and all these, to make someday, zero plastic
bags; and maybe that day will come soon enough, but it's a process like anything else. It won't
stop tomorrow. Okay. So, just so that we get that clear so that I don't get, you know, I don't
see you getting all, you know, flustered and saying oh, I gotta do this tomorrow. I gotta hire
people tomorrow. No, this is not going to happen that way.
Again, go ahead, Councilmember Pontanilla.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I think you mentioned the word "education"
whieh is, I think a very important thing that we need to do--providing education to the public
regarding plastic bags. I have a question regarding your comments, Ms. Okuma, on things that
you said. Will you be working closely with Deidre, in regards to whenever you do this
administrative rules such that, you know, we do have businesses out there that depend on
plastic bags that, you know, we need to ensure that those businesses are, are also included in
your discussions. I don't know, at this time, you know, your involvement .. .in regards to ... with
Deidrc in trying to educate our business partners.
MS. OKUMA: I think certainly that's a good point. And yes, I'll stay in touch with Deidre on this
issue, and will be working with her office on this.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. OKUMA: (NOTE: Speaking to Ms. Tegarden.) Did you want?
MS. TEGARDEN: No. Yes, I echo that sentiment and, you know, I think, as we look at this, it's
taking baby steps and making sure that, you know, all of the stakeholders that are involved
have a say, you know, as we move forward so it doesn't create any undue hardship. But it's
nice to see that the ... (end o/tape, start 2A at 10:08 a.m.) . .. revised proposal does have that
nice time frame even for the small, the small businesses because that was one of our initial
concerns, so we thank you very much on that. But, you know, we were also talking with a lot
of our small businesses and they are already stepping up to the plate providing the reusable
bags, giving you a diseount if you bring back your own bag. So, it would, it is I think, our hope
that while you have a five-year time frame that a lot of these steps are going to be taken before
that time.

- 26-

PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

June 18,2008

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman, you know, this is a good example. We
don't, we don't like the cart before the horse. Ifwe take these baby steps, hopefully, we can get
the horse in front of this cart. Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Member Pontanilla. But I do have to be
corrected, and thank you to our Legislative Analyst for making one small correction. There is
20.18.040, which states, "A business with annual gross sales of over $250,000 would have a
immediate banning." Okay. So there is one part where it gives the smaller business and that's
what we were cognizant of to give them time; but for the larger retailers and all that, they
would be more immediate. So, Cheryl, I take that back. You would need to work on it right
away. So, I take back what I just said. I apologize.
However, all said and done, I think this is a process that has really started the educational part,
made the public aware, made the industry come to the table. I think it's a win-win situation.
So, other comments or questions for the administrative representatives?
Mateo?

Councilmember

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Chair, if you don't mind, my question would
be geared towards Corporation Counsel.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yes, fine. I mean he's available, Mr. Galazin.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Corporation Counsel, under the section relative to
penalties, one of the components aside from the monetary fines is the potential of a suspension
of license. Because of that particular component, there is no appeals process in the existing, or
the proposed, or the draft bill, whatever we're going to call it at this point because we're a
distance away from approving it at this point. Corporation Counsel, because there is that
absence, is this an area that we need to be inclusive of because the suspension of a business
license is in fact a major move in implementing a penalty?
MR. GALAZIN:
Are you referring to how 19.530.030 [sic] reads currently m the Code?
... (pause) ... Oh, excuse me. Hold on.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That's the wrong part.
MR. GALAZIN: Oh, okay. Actually, you know, the Director is showing me this newest revision that I
had not seen to the bill. ... (pause). .. So, yeah, I apologize. But this was just brought to my
attention, so I cannot really feel comfortable commenting on it to any extent until I've had the
time to kinda look at it and process it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: (NOTE: Speaking to Mr. Mateo.) Yeah, let me see yours.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Here. (NOTE: Speaking to Mr. Pontanilla.) Mr. Chainnan, then
could perhaps Staff provide additional conunent?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Mr. Jensen, are you prepared?
MR. JENSEN: I was just wanting to direct everyone's attention to the earlier revision, which did
involve suspension of license and things in the original bill is transmitted. But the most recent
version of the bill, which was referred to in March, does not.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
. . . (Long pause as Members locate subject bill.) ...

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: That's the one I got.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: The March one?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No, had that one.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: That's July. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chainnan?
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Just for clarification purposes, I just received ...
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Received, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Scott just gave me this. So, could we, could Staff clarifY for the
Members, for the Committee right now, which, which draft we're looking at.
MR. JENSEN: It's the one labeled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A NEW
CHAPTER 20.18, MAUl COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO PLASTIC BAG
REDUCTION", and it's the one signed as to fonn and legality by Deputy Corporation Counsel
Galazin.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the date of that particular item?
MR. JENSEN: Urn.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: October 19th ?
MR. GALAZIN: A letter, it must be attached to a letter.
MR. JENSEN: It's the one that was dated November 6,2007, and transmitted from Councilmember
Molina.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah, that's the old one that we got.
MR. JENSEN: It's not the one that appeared in the Communication of Discharge from the Policy
Committee. That communication attached the original bill as proposed by Councilmember
Molina.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: You know at this time, I'm going to call for a IO-minute recess so that we
can kinda get this straightened up and then come back and then be all on the same page. So,
this Committee will be in recess 'til 10:25 .... (gavel) ...

RECESS:

10:15 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:28 a.m.

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: ... (gavel) . .. The Committee of Public Works and, Public Works and
Facility will reconvene. Just for clarification, first of all, the bill that we're discussing is the
new Chapter 20.18, Maui County Code, Pertaining to the Plastic Bag Reduction. Now, I was
informed that the new revised version is on our website under Public Works, so that is available
for the public. That version that is on our Maui County Website under Public Works is the
current version. For Members, we are looking on that November 6,2007. That's the one that
we are currently talking about, that ordinance that was revised, yeah, for the plastic bag
reduction. And, that one does not have the revocation or suspension of licensing, business
license, I should say. So, Mr. Mateo, I stand corrected in that one. I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. I, too, was not looking at the
revised bill where that specific item was, was removed, so my question is moot at this point.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: At this time, yes. And we'll discuss it a little further. At this point, I'll ask
Mr. Galazin, you know, because that's the one we're looking at right now. I guess to make sure
that we have some clarification. That was removed because, and I guess that's the reason I'm
asking. Why was that removed, if I may ask?
MR. GALAZIN: That was actually removed before the bill was given to me to work on.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I see.
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MR. GALAZIN: So, I can't really--I can only speculate I suppose.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: I guess Councilmember Molina can probably give us more insight on that.
Okay. Go ahead, Councilmember Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. I guess it's been a while since we worked on
it. So if memory serves me correct, I believe the County does not have the authority to suspend
business licenses 'cause I think those are issued by the State. So I think that might have been
one of the reasons, when we submitted the original draft, we had included the suspension of
business licenses; and then we were informed by another member of the Corporation Counsel's
office that the County does not have the authority to suspend business licenses because that
comes under the State. So I believe that was part of the reason why it was removed.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: You make a good point.
Mr. Galazin, you can look into.

I think that, you know, maybe something,

MR. GALAZIN: Yeah, I can double check on that. But I, the sense of it, I think, is I agree with
Member Molina on that.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Okay. So now that we're all on the same page, I will
continue the discussion. And let me inform the public, as well as the Members, it is my desire
today to try to, you know, get as much done as we can. Makc whatever corrections, or
whatever other ideas and we pass some ideas. For example, I just, when reading this over, felt
that and we gonna, gonna ask Deidre Tegarden to explain a little bit more; but some of the
numbers that were given to us, such as 250,000 as far as a threshold, may be not really
adequate even for small businesses. And at this time, before I go any further, let me call upon
Ms. Tegarden to kinda give us an explanation in regards to 20.18.040.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yeah.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Ms. Tegarden?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you, Committee Chair. Where it's specifically, sorry, specifically talking
about businesses with annual gross sales of over 250,000 being prohibited from providing the
non-biodegradable plastic bags, somewhat immediately, the Small Business Administration
defines "small businesses" at an annual gross sales of $500,000 and more. So we would like to
request that Council consider raising that gross sales limit or possibly lengthening the time
frame so that the small businesses aren't burdened with any undue hardships. That was just a
request. Thank you.

- 30-

PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE
Council ofthe County of Maui
June 18, 2008

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Tegarden. And, I think that was another area that I've
mentioned that I'd like us to consider and we'll, we'll talk a little bit more about it. But instead
of an immediate, maybe something like 12 or 24 months so that gives the business, even the
larger business the time to really change over. Also give our departments the time to get, not
only the administrative rules, but get the regulatory enforcement issues prepared. So when we
get out there, there's no if, buts, ors about it. Now, we've come out with, with, with--like
Mr. Molina said--the grocery or the bag police officer coming around to check. And when they
come to check, they're going to be waiting with enforcement powers to make it a reality, yeah.
So, anyhow, gentlemen, I turn it back to you. Ideas, questions, Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. For Ms. Tegarden, you're recommending maybe
an increase in the threshold. So, I guess we need, we had initially put the 250,000, we modeled
it after the San Francisco or Oakland ordinance. Obviously, the lower we go below 250, the
more businesses it could impact. And I totally understand the sensitivity towards small
business and I guess that's the feedback you've been getting from the small businesses. And I
guess it's either raise the threshold from 250 to 300 or 400,000 or give them more time to
implement. So, what would you suggest? I guess it's 180 days right now. What would you
suggest to the Committee?
MS. TEGARDEN: We've done some soft research talking with our small businesses and specifically
about this, and I think maybe a longer time frame would be easier to handle. So many of the
small businesses, one I'm thinking of specifically, she has already ordered four years worth,
worth of plastic bags. And while she herself is giving credits to her clientele that bring in or
reuse their bags, if this were to be put in place immediately, she's going to be left with a lot of
plastic bags and also the money that she had spent to purchase those. So, I think if we had a
little bit longer of a time frame for the smaller businesses to come into compliance that would
be helpful--a year, year and a half. Six months is, is, is a lot for a small business.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Well, I again, Ms. Tegarden, I think my suggestion--and I would hope the
Committee would look favorably upon it--is that all businesses would have 12 months or so, 24
months, something, you know, we gotta come up with a number; and those small businesses
would have the five years. And that's why I think the five years is in there and now it's a
matter of where we find the threshold when you talking small businesses. And I think that's
what I'm looking at, Councilmember Molina, is the five years is there for small business, but
what is a small business? If we're using the business administration's terms, it's 500,000. If
we're gonna keep it at 250, would that hurt a lot of small businesses? And even if we gave 'em
a year or two, that's still not enough. And the five years is good. I think that solves, or I think
gives a reasonable time for the changeover. This lady in question would have that time. Right?
MS. TEGARDEN: I agree, yes.

- 31 -

PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE
Council ofthe County of Maui
June 18, 2008

CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: So I guess that's what, in this case, first one is the threshold. Where would
we like to keep it at or raise it to. Okay. I guess that's what I'm asking first of all. Secondly,
for all businesses, a period of time--12 months, 24 months, no more than that as far as the large
ones are concerned. To me, they have the, they should be able to make that change and our
smaller businesses would need the five years.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yeah, a little bit more flextime for the small businesses.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: That's correct, yeah. So I think the five years kinda covers that. Now we
gotta raise, we gotta play with the threshold. I think that's the issue that is at hand at this point.
So anyhow, okay.
Gentlemen, questions for the Administration, or comments?
Councilmember Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I just wanna clarifY the amount that Deidre had provided us.
You said from 250,000 to 500,000?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, because the Small Business Administration defines a "small business" -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: That's fine.
MS. TEGARDEN: --as having 500,000 annual gross sales.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. And I'd like to, in one sense, be consistent too. I think that's
important. Councilmember Molina, I think you agree. Consistency is something that,
something that we go away from, you know. And I think this lady, you know, the business in
question, your best estimate, what kind of gross sales would they have annually? This one
business that you were referring to.
MS. TEGARDEN: Actually, I did speak with her and she's just under, just under 500,000. So she
really falls within that -CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Small business category.
MS. TEGARDEN: --small business, small business category. And again, she is really doing a lot on
her own, as we see a lot of the small businesses doing. But if you couId consider raising that
threshold, I think that would help a lot of our small businesses.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tegarden. Okay. Other suggestions, comments?
And again, we will take today's item and refme it and then bring it back, so. Yes,
Councilmember Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Just food for thought, if I recall, the Honolulu's
proposal or Oahu County's proposal, I think their threshold is at one million. So I guess their
target is more, they're just initially going for the real big guys. You know, how much of an
impact it would make on the whole impact of plastic bags, I don't know, but I think something
less than a million would have a much more impact in terms of reducing the amount of plastic.
So, I just thought I'd share that with the Committee. So, I guess with 250,000, it would make a
siguificant impact; but again, you know, it's up to you and the Committee Members to
determine what is best. I guess, you know, one size doesn't fit all -CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: That's...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --but we have to take into consideration the needs of our small
businesses as well, so.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Councilmember Molina. And I think that's, you hit the
nail on the head. And what impacts to a little island like Molokai would this have when you're
talking a very few stores and I'm going to bet you Misaki and some of these guys are over
250,000 but maybe not 500,000. And what kind of impact with all the other things that are
occurring on that island would this have? So, I think sensitivity is very important and I think
consistency is very important. I like the idea if Small Business Administration says 500,000,
we use the same thing. So there's nobody can challenge us. Oh somebody said this and here,
we're going over here. You know I think sometimes being cognizant of that is important also,
but I don't think a million. I agree with you. I think a million is too high for, for Maui. I think
that would not be really appropriate. But again, I'd also like to suggest in we will look at,
maybe even for the big ones, a year, 24 months, 12-24 months, something like that, where they
have some time, but they've gotta make that change. Our Administration (our Environmental
Management Division) would be ready to enforce what is out there. I think six months may be
really quick, you know, to hire, train, get everybody out there. We may be putting the cart
before the horse again. You know what I mean? And let's get the horse--like Mr. Pontanilla
said--Iet's get the cart and the horse in front of the cart, and let's drive on and get it right.
Yes, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Question for Deidre. In regards to the threshold of $500,000
and below for small business as defined by, would you know how many small businesses do we
have in Maui County that falls under that $500,000 and below?
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MS. TEGARDEN: You know I have that information back at the office because we just finished
doing a internal report and we're waiting for some final numbers. And if I may, I'd like to get
you the updated numbers to be sure so that we're all on the same page as you move forward
with this. So I'd like to get back to you with that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, okay. And, I don't know how many businesses, but, you
know, give us an example of, you know, the type of stores that we talking about.
MS. TEGARDEN: We're talking of stores in Kaahumanu Shopping Center like Paper Garden. We're
talking about stores on North Market Street like If the Shoe Fits. A lot of the stores up in
Makawao, Paia--the clothiers. Some of the smaller mom-and-pop-grocery type outlets but it's
really, it's, it's not just one category. I mean it's clothing; it's food items; it's, you know, paper
stationery type goods. So, those are, those are the ones that we had gone out and talked to
among others as well.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Thank you. At this time, you know, if I don't see any more questions or
comments, I'd like to ask the Department, and I--first of all, I'd ask all my fellow
Councilmembers if you have specific inquiries or specific answers to certain questions that you
would like to see, please forward it so that we can forward, forward it to Staff and so we can
forward it on to the appropriate Departments, whether it's Environmental Management or
Office of Economics [sicJ, yeah. Because I think I'd like to bring this forward at our next
meeting with some revisions that we've discussed and that way we will have something to start
really taking a hard look at. I think the public's waiting for this. Our environment is waiting
for this, and I think the industry is waiting to see what we do 'cause Maui has always been a
leader. Maui always has been ahead of the curve and thanks to Councilmember Molina and all
the rest in this room and in this chamber. We always take the forefront. We don't sit back for
somebody else to tell us what to do. And I don't like the State saying that the County should
stay out of it and it's our responsibility. It's our home. It's our island, our home county, and
we'll take care of our own problems, you know. If you want to help us, give us the money and
let us take care of the problem from there, which I'm not going to say anything more. So if
nothing else, I would like to ask for deferral of this matter and bring it forward at our next
meeting if that's all right with the, with no objections from the Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (pRESENT: DM, JP, MV)
ACTION:

DEFER.
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CO-CHAIR VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. And I'd like to thank the Departments for being here.
Mr. Galazin, thank you for your help and hopefully we'll get that. Thanks, thank you, Scott
and Pauline, for your assistance today. I truly appreciate it. Again, I wish well, a quick
recovery to Co-Chair Medeiros. I look forward to him being back at our next meeting. And to
all of those out there, have a good day and thank you very much; and meeting adjourned .
. .. (gavel) ...
ADJOURN: 10:43 a.m.
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